MINUTES OF COUNCIL ORDINARY MEETING

28 JANUARY 2020

<u>Held in the Council Chambers, Administration Building</u> <u>45 Roderick Street, Ipswich</u>

The meeting commenced at 9.00 am

The Interim Administrator advised that he is bound to declare Conflict of Interests and potential Conflict of Interests.

ATTENDANCE AT COMMENCEMENT	Steve Greenwood (Interim Administrator)
WELCOME TO COUNTRY OR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY	Ipswich City Council respectfully acknowledges the Traditional Owners as custodians of the land upon which we meet. We pay our respects to their elders, past, present and emerging, as the keepers of the traditions, cultures and stories of a proud people.
OPENING PRAYER	Steve Greenwood (Interim Administrator) Let us in silence pray or reflect upon our responsibilities to the people of Ipswich.
	We meet today to serve our community, to use our resources wisely and well, to represent all members of our community fairly and to make decisions that promote the common good.
APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE	Nil

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

CONFIRMATION OF	The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:
MINUTES OF ORDINARY MEETING	That the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting held on 10 December 2019 be confirmed.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS ON THE AGENDA

DECLARATION The Interim Administrator informed the meeting that he has or could reasonably be taken to have a perceived conflict of interest in Item 25 titled Contract Award – No. 13087 Road Realignment and Signalisation – Marsden Parade, Ipswich.

The nature of the perceived interest is that the recommended tenderer is a member of the Queensland Futures Institute of which he is the Managing Director.

The Interim Administrator confirmed, that as there is no personal or financial benefit to the Interim Administrator, he would participate in the meeting in relation to the matter.

OFFICERS' REPORTS

1. REGIONAL ARTS	The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:		
DEVELOPMENT FUND (RADF) GRANT APPLICATIONS	Α.	That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) approve funding of \$6,100 to Fusion Arts towards the development and presentation of the junior musical, The Little Mermaid, as outlined in the report by the Community Grants Coordinator dated 19 December 2019.	
	В.	That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) approve funding of \$5,000 to Eugene Gilfedder towards Stage 1 of the Legends of Cocky- Jerry-Jar project, as outlined in the report by the Community Grants Coordinator dated 19 December 2019.	
	С.	That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) approve funding of \$8,400 to THAT Production Company towards the Failure to Launch creative development project, as outlined in the report by the Community Grants Coordinator dated 19 December 2019.	
	The motion was put and carried.		
2. COMMUNITY DONATIONS REPORT	The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:		
		That the report be received and the contents noted.	
	The mo	tion was put and carried.	

3. COMMUNITY The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves: FUNDING AND That the policy titled Community Grants and In-Kind Α. SUPPORT POLICY Assistance Policy as detailed in Attachment 1 to the report by the Community Grants Coordinator dated 8 January 2020, as per Item No. 13 of the City Management, Finance and Community Engagement Committee No. 2018(06) of 19 June 2018, adopted at the Council Ordinary meeting on 26 June 2018, be repealed. Β. That the policy titled Community Donations Policy as detailed in Attachment 2 to the report by the **Community Grants Coordinator dated 8 January** 2020, as per Item No. 4 of the Governance Committee No. 2019(12) of 3 December 2019, adopted at the Council Ordinary meeting on 10 December 2019, be repealed. С. That the policy titled Bursaries, Scholarships and Other Funding for Community Purposes Policy as detailed in Attachment 3 to the report by the **Community Grants Coordinator dated 8 January** 2020, as per Item No. 4 of the Governance Committee No. 2019(12) of 3 December 2019, adopted at the Council Ordinary meeting on 10 December 2019, be repealed. D. That the policy titled Community Funding and Support Policy as detailed in Attachment 4 to the report by the Community Grants Coordinator dated 8 January 2020, be adopted. DISCUSSION The General Manager Community, Cultural and Economic Development provided an overview of the report outlining that this policy is an update to a previous policy. The recommendations are to repeal a number of existing policies that relate to community funding and support and replace those with an updated policy capturing the current intent of these programs. This is an outcome of the transformational projects and is a commitment from council that has been endorsed by the Executive Leadership Team and is the first step towards centralising and streamlining the funding and support programs of council. Listed in the report is a timetable of how council intend to not only streamline but increase the transparency and reporting nature of these programs. Continuing on from the adoption of this policy, will be the adoption of new procedures and a new framework and further

public reports to council as to how to continually improve these processes.

The Interim Administrator queried if there would be some community engagement in relation to this policy as most consultation to date has been internal.

The General Manager Economic and Community Development stated that following internal consultation and following the use of a consultant to provide some best practice advice on how to set this up, the recommendations of the team will then be used for community consultation.

The motion was put and carried.

4. ADVOCACY FOR REGIONALLY SIGNIFICANT PROJECTS POLICY The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:

That the Advocacy for Regionally Significant Projects Policy be adopted.

DISCUSSION

The General Manager Community, Cultural and Economic Development provided an overview of the report outlining that again this is an outcome from Business Transformation Project No. 18. He stated that this policy as well as the general procedure has been previously approved and endorsed by the Transformational Project Team, the Interim Management Committee as well as the Executive Leadership Team and that it was important to note that this is one mechanism in a broader framework of how council approach advocacy in the organisation. The policy outlines the priorities of council in this space and sets some expectations as to the roles and responsibilities of officers but also incoming council into the future. The procedure will be a sister component to this policy and will be adopted by the General Manager Coordination and Performance in the near future. They operate within a broader framework which has been previously supported and adopted by the Transformational Project Team as well as the Interim Management Committee.

The Interim Administrator stated that this is quite a significant policy and thanked the team involved who put a lot of work into the policy.

5. CITY HEART CABS PROGRAM	The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:
	That the contents of the report by the Community Engagement and Development Manager dated
	16 January 2020, be noted.
DISCUSSION	The General Manager Community, Cultural and Economic Development advised that this report was a follow up to a previous request from council to return with legal advice in relation to the continuation, in the interim, of the City Heart Cabs Program whilst a new model for that program is devised. The motion was put and carried.
6. MOORES POCKET / TIVOLI SPORTS	The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:
COMPLEX	That the previous recommendations A and B as per Item No. 8 and adopted at Council Ordinary Meeting 30 May 2017 - Refer: City Works, Parks, Sport and Environment Committee No. 2017(05) of 22 May 2017, be repealed.
DISCUSSION	The General Manager Community Cultural and Economic Development provided an overview of the report outlining that the report is requesting the repeal of a previous commitment of council. The commitment was given to proceed into discussions and negotiations. Advice from officers today is that based on a number of factors, it is not in the best interest of council or the community to continue in that direction.
	The Interim Administrator stated that this is one of those situations where council started moving down a certain path some time ago under the previous council and have now had an opportunity to review and revisit that decision. As the report suggests it now may not be beneficial to continue on that path. He stated that this is not an easy decision as he is aware there were expectations created for some organisations in the community however council must make decisions on behalf of the community as a whole.
	The motion was put and carried.
7. DELEGATION OF POWERS TO APPOINT	The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:
TWO EXTERNAL INDEPENDENT MEMBERS AND	A. That the commencement of an external recruitment process for membership of the Audit and Risk Management Committee, be noted.

NOMINATE THE CHAIRPERSON TO THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	В.	That the Interim Administrator and the Chief Executive Officer appoint two external independent members to the Audit and Risk Management Committee.	
	С.	That the Interim Administrator and the Chief Executive Officer nominate and appoint the Chairperson (upon the retirement of the current Chair) to the Audit and Risk Management Committee from the independent external members.	
	D.	That the current Chairperson be thanked for firstly serving from 2002 as an advisor, from 2010 as a full member and then from 2018 as the Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and for his contribution to the organisation.	
DISCUSSION	outlinin Audit ar adopted appoint Commit current formalis	ef Audit Executive gave an overview of the report g that this report follows on from the newly adopted nd Risk Management Committee Charter that was d by Council in November. This recommendation is to two members to the Audit and Risk Management the as an additional member is required and the Chairperson is coming to the end of his term. This ses the process of giving the Interim Administrator and ef Executive Officer the authority to proceed with the ment.	
	where c elected Risk Ma will allo membe	erim Administrator stated that this is another process council is tying up loose ends to ensure the newly council commences with a fully functioning Audit and nagement Committee. He outlined that this decision w the Chief Executive Officer and himself to select rs so that the committee can continue running. tion was put and carried.	
8. HUMAN RIGHTS	The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:		
ACT 2019	Α.	That the policy titled "Human Rights Act Policy" as detailed in Attachment 1, be adopted.	
	В.	That the Complaints Management Framework be amended as outlined in Attachment 3.	
DISCUSSION		ing General Manager Corporate Services provided an work of the report outlining that the commencement of	

	the Human Rights Act 2019 on 1 January 2020 places and obligation on council as a public entity to protect and promote human rights. She stated that this report recommends the adoption of a human rights policy and speaks to council's intent and commitment to human rights and an amendment to the Complaints Management Framework to ensure compliance under the Act. The Acting General Manager Corporate Services also stated that there will be a further review process from the legal and governance area to identify other reports that will be impacted by this Act.			
	The Interim Administrator outlined that the commencement of the Act is a big step for Queensland and that there will be flow on implications moving forward.			
	The mo	tion was put and carried.		
9. MONTHLY PERFORMANCE	The Inte	erim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:		
REPORT - NOVEMBER 2019		That the report be received and the contents noted.		
2015	The motion was put and carried.			
10. BEVERAGE SUPPLIES FOR CIVIC	The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:			
SUPPLIES FOR CIVIC CENTRE - SECTION235 OTHER EXCEPTIONS LOCAL GOVERNMENT REGULATION	Α.	That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) resolve it is satisfied under section 235(a) of the <i>Local Government Regulation 2012 (Regulation</i>) that the exemption under s235(a) of the <i>Regulation</i> applies and that Schweppes Australia, Coca-Cola and Australian Liquor Marketers are the only suppliers reasonably available to it to provide beverages to the Ipswich Civic Centre for the following reason:		
	1.	Schweppes Australia and Coca-Cola are the manufacturer of a wide variety of beverages and therefore purchasing directly through the supplier delivers the best value for money. Similarly, Australian Liquor Marketers are a wholesaler where Council is able to purchase alcohol for the Ipswich Civic Centre at wholesale prices to achieve the best value for money and profit margins due to purchasing direct from the wholesaler.		
	В.	That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) enter into a contract with Schweppes Australia, Coca-Cola and Australian Liquor Marketers for the provision of beverage supplies for a period of		

three (3) years.

	C.	That the Chief Executive Officer be authorised to negotiate and finalise the terms of the contract to be executed by Council and to do any other acts necessary to implement Council's decision in accordance with section 13(3) of the <i>Local</i> <i>Government Act 2009</i> .
DISCUSSION	overvie procure been id bar and that the	ing General Manager Corporate Services provided an w of the report outlining that the report is seeking ement action pertaining to sole providers that have entified to service the Ipswich Civic Centre, specifically I canteen services, for functions and events. She stated ere is provision under s235(a) of the Regulation to enter opriety arrangements to achieve the best value for
	The mo	tion was put and carried.
11. REGULATORY SEARCHES CITEC - SECTION 235 OTHER EXCEPTIONS LOCAL GOVERNMENT REGULATION 2012	The Inte	erim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves: That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) resolve it is satisfied under section 235(a) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 (Regulation) that the exemption under s235(a) of the Regulation applies and that CITEC is the only supplier reasonably available to it to provide various regulatory services and or reporting for the following reason: CITEC provide a one-stop-shop for the regulatory searches required by Council in the various business processes undertaken. CITEC is a business area of the Department of Housing and Dublic Works
DISCUSSION	Department of Housing and Public Works. The Acting General Manager Corporate Services provided an overview of the report outlining that the report identifies a requirement to enter into a sole provider arrangement with CITEC who are responsible for managing and preserving access to Queensland public records and public access to the archival collection in supporting advisory services. She stated that CITEC is a business area of the Department of Housing and Public Works and are a one stop shop for this business critical requirement. The Interim Administrator queried if there were other information providers other than CITEC like InfoTrack and if they could provide the same level of service. He noted that	

there was no analysis provided of other potential providers.

The Acting General Manager Corporate Services advised that it was her understanding that no other provider could provide the full suite of services for what council requires.

The Interim Administrator stated that because this is a significant decision in terms of entering into an arrangement with a sole provider, it would have been useful to have more analysis as to why council is not considering InfoTrack or at least InfoTrack for part of the information. He requested that in future the report should include more analysis around other solutions available.

The motion was put and carried.

12. LEASE RENEWAL TO THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND - REPRESENTED BY THE PUBLIC SAFETY BUSINESS AGENCY - RURAL FIRE SERVICE - PART OF LOT 2 PINE MOUNTAIN ROAD PINE MOUNTAIN	The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:		
	Α.	That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) enter into a new lease agreement with The Public Safety Business Agency (PSBA) on behalf of the Rural Fire Service (RFS) over Lease A in Part of Lot 2 on SP102368 on SP130864 for a term of ten (10) years.	
	В.	That the Chief Executive Officer be authorised to negotiate and finalise the terms of the contract to be executed by Council and to do any other acts necessary to implement Council's decision in accordance with section 13(3) of the <i>Local</i> <i>Government Act 2009</i> .	
	The mo	tion was put and carried.	
13. CHERISH THE ENVIRONMENT FOUNDATION - COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE	The Inte	erim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:	
	That Cherish the Environment Foundation Limited be advised that Council has nominated Steve Greenwood (Interim Administrator) as Council's representative for the Cherish The Environment Limited board.		
DISCUSSION		erim Administrator outlined that this is a temporary ement until a new council has been elected.	

14. RATES EXEMPTION - VEDANTA	The li	 That the following recommendations 14 (F and G) made by the Governance Committee on 14 May 2019 and adopted at the Council Ordinary Meeting of 21 May 2019, be repealed. F. That the property described in assessment 178542, Lot 2 SP 275460, not be exempt from rates, from 14 May 2015. G. That the property described in assessment
		178542, Lot 2 SP 275460, not be granted a concession for rates, from 14 May 2015.
	В.	That the property described in assessment 178542, Lot 2 SP 275460, be exempt from rates, from 5 June 2015.
	C.	That, subsequent to the property described in assessment 178542, Lot 2 SP 275460, being determined as exempt from rates, from 5 June 2015, that any residual interest charged on arrears of rates be written-off.
DISCUSSION	overv exem regar and\o consid She s confid exem conta The A this d made	Acting General Manager Corporate Service provided an view of the report outlining that this pertains to a rates ption matter. Discussions have been ongoing since 2015 ding eligibility of the property for a rates concession or an exemption. The matter was most recently dered by council at its ordinary meeting on 21 May 2019. tated that additional information has been provided in the dential background paper and it is recommended that ption now be provided on the eligible properties nined in and subject to the confidential background paper. Acting General Manager Corporate Services outlined that lecision does not alter the previous council resolutions e at its meeting on 21 May 2019 pertaining to the property ibed in assessment 178541 Lot 1 SP275460.
	The n	notion was put and carried.
15. 13980 REGISTER OF EXPERTS FOR THE	The li	nterim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:
INDEPENDENT DECISION REVIEW PANEL		That the report be received and the contents noted.

DISCUSSION	overvie evaluat plannin and en commi- should execute busines	ting General Manager Corporate Services provided an ew of the report outlining that this pertains to the tender tion for the provision of a register of suppliers in urban ng and design, architecture, law, environmental sciences gineering. Of the 70 responses, the evaluation ttee has recommended that 62 suppliers be accepted. It be noted that with the volume of contracts to be ed, award will be undertaken in stages to minimise ss impact while improving access to expert suppliers and s mandated under the framework.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST	interes	erim Administrator declared a perceived conflicted of t in Item 15 titled 13980 Register of Experts for the ndent Decision Review Panel.
	the list	ture of the interest is that almost all of the experts on is either known to the Interim Administrator or that he d dealings with them on a professional basis over many
	person	erim Administrator confirmed that, as there is no al or financial benefit to the Interim Administrator he participate in the meeting in relation to the matter.
	The mo	ption was put and carried.
16. 2019-2023 ASSET	The Int	erim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:
VALUATION - LAND, BUILDINGS AND INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS - APPOINTED VALUER - QUOTATION	Α.	That Request for Quotation 14176 for asset valuation services for land, building and infrastructure assets for the next four years be awarded to Cardno (QLD) Pty Ltd under the Local Buy Contract.
NUMBER: 14176	В.	That the Chief Executive Officer be authorised to negotiate and finalise the terms of the contract to be executed by Council and to do any other acts necessary to implement Council's decision in accordance with section 13(3) of the <i>Local Government</i> <i>Act 2009.</i>
DISCUSSION	overvie procure service four ye expired	ting General Manager Corporate Services provided an ew of the report outlining that this pertains to the ement and evaluation of quotes for asset valuation s of land, buildings and infrastructure assets for the next ars. She stated that Council's five year contract recently and under the provision of section 104 of the <i>Local</i> <i>ment Act 2009</i> , quotations were sought to provide

services for the next four years by the local buy panel. The full evaluation report and matrix is included. Council updated the original scope as set out in Attachment 1 and submissions to the original and revised scope are set out in Attachments 2 through 7.

The motion was put and carried.

17. 13274 - The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:

LOCKSMITH SERVICES

- A. That in accordance with s233 of the *Local Government Regulation 2012,* Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) approve a Preferred Supplier Arrangement for the supply of Locksmith Services.
- B. That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) resolve under s233(7) of the *Local Government Regulation 2012,* it is satisfied that it will obtain better value for money by entering into a Preferred Supplier Arrangement for a term of more than two (2) years.
- C. That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) enter into a contract for the provision of Locksmith Services with the recommended Tenderer as detailed in the Evaluation Report for a period of two (2) years with the option to extend the contract by three (3) x further one (1) year periods.
- D. That the Chief Executive Officer be authorised to negotiate and finalise the term of the contract to be executed by Council and to do any other acts necessary to implement Council's decision in accordance with section 13(3) of the *Local Government Act 2009*.

18. HERITAGE AND	The In	The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:		
MONUMENTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING NO. 212	Α.	That the minutes of the Heritage and Monuments Advisory Committee No. 212 be received and noted.		
	В.	That the Chairperson of the Heritage and Monuments Advisory Committee contact the General Manager (Infrastructure and Environment Department) to request a status update on the Indigenous Australian		

Memorial proposed for Queens Park.

19. EXERCISE OF	The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:		
DELEGATION REPORT		That the report be received and the contents noted.	
	The mot	ion was put and carried.	
20. COURT ACTION STATUS REPORT	The Inte	rim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:	
STATUS REPORT		That the report be received and the contents noted.	
	The mot	ion was put and carried.	
21. TEMPORARY	The Inte	rim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:	
LOCAL PLANNING INSTRUMENTS NO. 1 AND NO. 2 OF 2020 (WASTE ACTIVITY REGULATION)	Α.	That Council make Temporary Local Planning Instrument No. 1 of 2020 (Waste Activity Regulation) as detailed in Attachment 1 to the report by the Manager, City Design, dated 10 January 2020.	
	В.	That Council make Temporary Local Planning Instrument No. 2 of 2020 (Waste Activity Regulation) as detailed in Attachment 2 to the report by the Manager, City Design, dated 10 January 2020.	
	C.	That Temporary Local Planning Instrument No. 1 of 2020 (Waste Activity Regulation) and Temporary Local Planning Instrument No. 2 of 2020 (Waste Activity Regulation) as detailed in Attachment 1 and Attachment 2 to the report by the Manager, City Design, dated 10 January 2020 be forwarded to the Minister for State Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning, requesting the Minister approve the remaking of the TLPIs in accordance with the provisions of Section 23 of the <i>Planning Act 2016</i> and the Minister's Guidelines and Rules with an earlier effective day of 7 April 2020 in accordance with section 9(4) of the <i>Planning Act 2016</i> .	
	D.	That Temporary Local Planning Instrument No. 1 of 2020 (Waste Activity Regulation) and Temporary Local Planning Instrument No. 2 of 2020 (Waste Activity Regulation) be forwarded to the Minister for Local Government, Racing and Multicultural Affairs, requesting the Minister approve the remaking of the	

	TLPIs in accordance with the provisions of Section 90(B) of the <i>Local Government Act 2009,</i> as exceptional circumstances apply and it is in the public interest for Council to remake the TLPIs during or immediately after the caretaker period for local government elections (2020).		
DISCUSSION	The General Manager Planning and Regulatory Services provided an overview of the report outlining that council has recognised that the first Temporary Local Planning Instrument (TLPI) will expire in early April. Given the transition to a new Council after the election, the timeframe would be very tight for having the matter revisited so the State Government have been approached about bringing forward the re-approval of TLPI 1. At the same time council has bundled TLPI 1 and TLPI 2 together to go back to the state to get them reapproved for a further period of time.		
	He stated that preliminary discussions with the state have indicated that there is no major concern with this occurring. The content, aims and objectives of the TLPI are staying the same as well as the terms so on that basis it should progress. The other option that is being outlined at the same time, as a precaution, is for Council to seek Ministerial Approval during the caretaker period.		
	The Interim Administrator agreed and stated that it would be a tight timeframe for this to be considered by the incoming council.		
	The motion was put and carried.		
22. DRAFT SEQ KOALA CONSERVATION STRATEGY AND HABITAT MAPPING	The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:		
	A. That the report be received and the contents noted.		
	B. That the contents of the report by the Manager, City Design dated 13 January 2020 be used to inform a submission in response to the State government's <i>draft South East Queensland Koala Conservation</i> <i>Strategy 2019-2024.</i>		
DISCUSSION	The General Manager Planning and Regulatory Services provided an overview of the report outlining that the state have had conversations with local government over the last period of time with respect to a range of issues relating to		

koalas and one of these has been the release of the draft SEQ

Conservation Strategy. He stated that Council has been asked to provide comment on the document and mapping and that the issues are outlined in the report in respect to the mapping and how it needs a bit more fine tuning with respect to the Ipswich City Council area. He further stated that generally the principles within the draft strategy with regard to Koala conservation are fairly admirable and worthy of support. When the matter is translated into planning controls, as to how the koala protection areas will be addressed through the regulatory regime, this will still need to be worked through but at this present time council's report back to parliament will be as outlined in the attached report.

The Interim Administrator stated that there is potential for a number of proposals from the state government to result in additional regulatory compliance activities for council.

The motion was put and carried.

The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:

23. REVIEW OF THE DOMESTIC WASTE COLLECTION POLICY. TEMPORARY **CANCELLATION OF** THE DOMESTIC **REFUSE AND** RECYCLING COLLECTION SERVICES POLICY AND USE OF **DRIVEWAYS AS TURNAROUND AREAS** FOR DOMESTIC WASTE COLLECTION **VEHICLES POLICY**

- A. That the policy titled 'Domestic Waste Collection Policy', as detailed in Attachment 2 to the report by the Senior Business Advisor dated 29 October 2019, as per Resolution No. 06.02 of the Health and Sport Committee of 20 January 1998, adopted at the Council Ordinary Meeting on 28 January 1998, be repealed.
- B. That the policy titled 'Domestic Waste Collection Policy', as detailed in Attachment 3 to the report by the Acting Ipswich Waste Services Manager dated 29 October 2019, be adopted.
- C. That the policy titled 'Temporary Cancellation of the Domestic Refuse and Recycling Collection Service Policy', as detailed in Attachment 4 to the report by the Senior Business Advisor dated 29 October 2019, as per Resolution No. 4 of the City Management and Finance Committee of 23 June 2015, adopted at the Council Ordinary Meeting on 30 June 2015, be repealed.
- D. That the policy titled 'Use of Driveways as Turnaround Areas for Domestic Waste Collection Vehicles Policy', as detailed in Attachment 5 to the report by the Senior Business Advisor dated
 29 October 2019, as per Resolution No. 3 of the City

Management and Finance Committee of 12 February 2013, adopted at the Council Ordinary Meeting on 19 February 2013, be repealed.

DISCUSSION The General Manager Infrastructure Services provided an overview of the report outlining that a review was undertaken in regard to policies relating to waste collection. The review was undertaken to gain alignment with current legislation, provide some clarity around terminology and process and to also consolidate some of the policies being utilised. Effectively the Domestic Waste Collection policy has been updated to include provisions so that the collection area can be designated which excludes dwellings that aren't occupiable. The changes have been made so that the rate for the service is changed as an access or availability charge rather than a fee for service charge. The major significant change is that provisions from the Driveways and Turnaround Areas for Domestic Waste Collection Vehicles policy have been included in the new Domestic Waste Collection policy.

The motion was put and carried.

24. ADDRESSING CONGESTION, CROSS RIVER CONNECTIVITY AND NETWORK RESILIENCE IN THE IPSWICH CITY CENTRE - STRATEGIC AND PRELIMINARY BUSINESS CASE

The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:

- A. That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) note and endorse the findings and recommendations of the Strategic Business Case and the Preliminary Business Case.
- B. That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) support the submission of Option 8 for assessment under Council's new 'Regional Significant Project Prioritisation Process'.
- C. That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) support the production of a newsletter and visualisation video based on the latest information from the Preliminary Business Case.
- D. That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) support the submission of the Strategic Business Case and the Preliminary Business Case to the Department of Transport and Main Roads.
- E. That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) support the submission of the Strategic Business Case and the Preliminary Business Case to Infrastructure Australia.

	F.	That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) seek funding and support from the Queensland and Australian Governments to undertake the Detailed Business Case stage.		
	G.	That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) support the commencement of the Detailed Business Case to confirm the final preferred option.		
DISCUSSION	The Manager Infrastructure Strategy provided an overview of the report outlining that this report concerns the development of a business case to address congestion, cross river connectivity and network resilience in the Ipswich City Centre. This project is referred to for planning purposes and known in the community as the Normal Street Bridge. The business case has been developed in accordance with Building Queensland business case framework and the strategic and preliminary stages of the business case are now complete. The preliminary business case recommends two new river crossing options be taken forward for further consideration into the third and final stage of the business case which is referred to as the detailed business case. The Interim Administrator stated that taking into account council just adopted the Advocacy for Regionally Significant Projects policy and the political cycle that the state is currently in, this is the perfect opportunity to have the detailed business case funded. The motion was put and carried.			
25. CONTRACT	The Inte	The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:		
AWARD - NO. 13087 ROAD REALIGNMENT AND SIGNALISATION - MARSDEN PARADE, IPSWICH	Α.	That Tender No. 13087 Road Realignment and Signalisation – Marsden Parade Ipswich Project be awarded to BMD Pty Ltd under an AS2124 Lump Sum Contract.		
	В.	That Council enter into a contract with BMD Constructions Pty Ltd for the sum of One million nine hundred and seventy-nine thousand five hundred and fifty-five dollars and three cents (Excl. GST) (\$1,979,555.03) as per the proposed works as specified in the project documentation.		
	C.	That the Chief Executive Officer be authorised to negotiate and finalise the terms of the contract to be		

executed by Council and to do any other acts necessary to implement Council's decision in accordance with section 13(3) of the *Local Government Act 2009*.

DISCUSSION The General Manager Infrastructure Services provided an overview of the report outlining that the report is in relation to a capital project which is part of the 2019-2020 financial year program. It is the construction or upgrade of an intersection with the inclusion of signals. The intersection is at Brisbane Street, Gordon Street and Marsden Parade as part of council's overall transport plan for the CBD area.

The motion was put and carried.

26. BRISBANE LIONSThe Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:LEASE OFThat pursuant to Section 236 (1)(b)(ii) of the LocalDEVELOPMENT AREAA.That pursuant to Section 236 (1)(b)(ii) of the Local22A AND 22B -Government Act 2009, Council resolve that an
exception is applicable for the disposal of valuable
non-current assets, namely Development Areas 22A
and 22B to a community organisation, namely the
Brisbane Bear-Fitzroy Football Club Ltd, trading as the
Brisbane Lions.

- B. That Council enter into an agreement for lease and lease with the Brisbane Bear-Fitzroy Football Club Ltd, trading as the Brisbane Lions for Development Areas 22A and 22B.
- C. That the Chief Executive Officer be authorised to negotiate and finalise the terms of the lease agreements for Development Areas 22A and 22B.

DISCUSSION The General Manager Coordination and Performance provided an overview of the report outlining that the report relates to the Brisbane Lions Stadium and the community sporting fields referred to as the Northern sporting fields at Springfield.

> He stated that Council entered into an MOU with the Brisbane Lions some years ago for the development of the stadium. There was a report put to council last year in relation to linking the two sports fields which are development areas 22A and 22B. 22A is the primary site of the Lions stadium and 22B will be a community use stadium but will be leased by the Brisbane Lions who will manage it and maintain it on behalf of council.

He outlined that as previously stated in the report this is a beneficial outcome for the community as the secondary field located on development area 22B will be developed ahead of schedule from a council perspective and to a higher standard for the community to use in that area. This is seeking an exception under the procurement rules as the assets are considered as valuable non-current assets. A resolution is sought from council to lease these to the Brisbane Lions as a community organisation without the requirement of going to a tender or auction for the disposal of those assets. The General Manager Coordination and Performance outlined that it was important to note that Brisbane Lions are considered a community organisation which is significant. Their charter states that they are a not for profit organisation. Even though they are a professional sporting team the organisation itself is not for profit and is considered a community organisation.

The motion was put and carried.

The Interim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:

27. TENDER CONSIDERATION PLAN - IPSWICH CENTRAL CBD RETAIL OPERATIONS SERVICE AGREEMENTS TERM OF ENGAGEMENT EXTENSION

- A. That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) resolve to prepare a Tender Consideration Plan for the term of engagement extension of a number of Supplier Contracts or Agreements (to which Ipswich City Council is a party to the Contract or Agreement) in accordance with section 230(1)(a) of the Local Government Regulation 2012.
- B. That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) resolve to adopt the Tender Consideration Plan for the term of engagement extension of a number of Supplier Contracts or Agreements (to which Ipswich City Council are a party to the Contract or Agreement) as outlined in the report by the Project Manager dated 13 January 2020 in accordance with section 230(1)(b) of the Local Government Regulation 2012.
- C. That Council (Interim Administrator of Ipswich City Council) resolve to extend the term of engagement for four existing Supplier Contracts or Agreements (which Ipswich City Council is a party to the Contract or Agreement) as listed in Attachment 2 for works pertaining to the retail operations of the 2 Bell Street and Ipswich City Square properties on the terms described in the report by the Project Manager dated 13 January 2020.

	D.	That the Chief Executive Officer be authorised to negotiate and finalise the timeframe for the extension of the contracts executed with various suppliers as detailed in Attachment 2 and to do any other acts necessary to implement Council's decision in accordance with section 13(3) of the <i>Local</i> <i>Government Act 2009</i> .
DISCUSSION	an overv Consider provision the Ipsw about du 2019. At to Ipswid across to transfer procured that nee with pro Coordina Consider month b for those steps of	eral Manager Coordination and Performance provided view of the report outlining that this relates to a Tender ration Plan that has been prepared in relation to the in to the services to the buildings that council owns in vich Central Precinct. He stated that this has come ue to the closure of Ipswich City Properties in June that time there were approximately 20 to 30 providers ch City Properties. Those contracts were novated o Ipswich City Council. The majority of those have been red across to council contracts under proper ment processes however there are still four remaining ed to be tendered out and brought back in accordance oper procurement processes. The General Manager ation and Performance stated that this Tender ration Plan seeks an extension for those on a month by basis whilst council finalises the procurement processes e services. He stated that these will be the final four the closure of Ipswich City Properties.
28. IPSWICH CENTRAL PROGRAM REPORT NO. 19 TO 11 DECEMBER 2019 AND REPORT NO. 20 TO 15 JANUARY 2020	The Inte	rim Administrator of the Ipswich City Council resolves:
	effective	e report on the Ipswich Central Program Report No. 19 e to 11 December 2019 and Report No. 20 effective to ary 2020 be received and the contents noted.
DISCUSSION	an overv works ha defects a defects. administ currently	eral Manager Coordination and Performance provided view of the report outlining that the Nicholas Street ave been completed. Ongoing works in terms of are being resolved however there are no significant He stated that the library building is on track and the tration building is progressing well, on budget and y ahead of time. The Administration building is ed for completion in July 2021.

MEETING CLOSED The meeting closed at 10.03 am.